
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

May 05, 2005 – 6:00 P.M. 
Hardee County Board of County Commissioners Board Room 

412 W. Orange Street, Courthouse Annex, Room 102, Wauchula, Fl. 33873 
 

MINUTES 
 
Planning and Zoning Board    Staff 
James Barncord, present    B/Z Director, T. Mike Cassidy, present 
Don Chancey, present     County Manager, Lex Albritton, ABSENT 
Roger Conley, Chairman, present   County Attorney, Ken Evers, ABSENT 
Dan Graham, present     B/Z Office Manager, B.J. Haney, present 
Charles Nicholson, Vice-Chairman, present  B/Z Executive Assistant Donna Black, present 
Carl Saunders, present 
Fred Small, present 
Vida Tomlinson, excused 
Max Ullrich, excused     No News Media identified 
 
Chairman Conley called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. A quorum was present. 
 
B/Z Office Manager Haney advised the Public Notice for the Regular Meeting was published in The 
Herald-Advocate on April 21 and April 28, 2005; Affidavit of Publication is on file. 
 
Building/Zoning Director Cassidy advised courtesy notices were mailed to adjoining property owners and 
all advertisements/public notices were properly posted. 
 
Cassidy explained the Planning and Zoning Board’s General Rules of Procedure. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Nicholson, second by Board Member Saunders to approve Minutes of 
Planning and Zoning Board April 07, 2005 Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B.J. Haney, as a Notary Public, State of Florida, administered the oath to those offering testimony. 
 
Agenda 05-18 
 
Conley advised of a request from Center for Orangutan/Chimpanzee by and through its Authorized 
Representative request approval of a Final Site Development Plan to continue the non-profit sanctuary on 
65MOL acres, zoned A-1, on or about Maude Rd. and Van Simmons Rd., Hardee County. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Final Site Development Plan ap-
proval and Staff Report for review prior to the 05/05/05 meeting. 
 
Board Member Chancey advised of a conflict of interest and signed a Memorandum of Voting Conflict for 
County, Municipal, and Other Local Public Officers (original on file). 
 
Chancey, Chancey and Associates Design Group, P.O. Box 352, Wauchula, FL 33873 representing the 
Center for Orangutan/Chimpanzee Conservation was present and sworn. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Final Site Development Plan Staff Report including the conclusion, recommend-
dation for approval and recommended conditions. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as 
evidence, no objections were presented. 
 
Board reviewed the Final Site Development Plan. 
 
Chairman called for public input; none received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -2-               05/05/05 
MINUTES 
 
MOTION by Board Member Barncord, second by Board Member Small to approve the Final Site 
Development Plan to continue the non-profit sanctuary on 65MOL acres zoned A-1 (Agriculture) based on 
staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval and recommended conditions, and based on 
the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Agenda 05-19 
 
Conley advised of a request from George Patterson by and through his Authorized Representative for 
approval of a Final Site Development Plan to operate a community center in the existing structures on 
.84MOL acre parcel zoned R-3 on or about Mowatt St., Hardee County. 
 
The Authorized Representative was present and sworn. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Final Site Development Plan and 
Staff Report for review prior to the 05/05/05 meeting. 
 
Board Member Chancey advised of a conflict of interest and signed a Memorandum of Voting Conflict for 
County, Municipal, and Other Local Public Officers (original on file). 
 
Chancey, Chancey and Associates Design Group, P.O. Box 352, Wauchula, FL 33873 representing 
George Patterson was present and sworn. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the FSDP Staff Report including the conclusion, and recommendation for approval, 
and recommended conditions. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no objections 
were presented. 
 
George Patterson, P.O. Box 923, Zolfo Springs, FL 33890 was present and sworn. 
 
Board inquired and Patterson advised the community center will be open to the public and there will be 
inside and outside recreation activities. 
 
Chancey noted that there will be opportunities for use of a computer. 
 
Chairman called for public input; none received. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Graham, second by Nicholson to approve the Final Site Development Plan to 
operate a community center in the existing structures on .84MOL-acre-parcel zoned R-3 (Multiple-Family 
Residential) based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval, and recommended 
conditions and based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Agenda 05-22 
 
Conley advised of a request from Hardee County Industrial Development Authority by and through its 
Authorized Representative for approval of a Final Site Development Plan for Organix South on the S 215 
ft of Lot 21, Hardee County Commerce Park, zoned C/IBC (Commercial/Industrial Business Center) for 
the processing of raw materials of the Neem tree into compounds for human and animal use. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Final Site Development Plan and 
Staff Report for review prior to the 05/05/05 meeting. 
 
Park Winter, Hardee County Economic Development Director, 312 North 7th Avenue, Wauchula, FL 
33873 was present and sworn. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Final Site Development Plan Staff Report including the conclusion, and recom-
mendation for approval, and recommended conditions. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as 
evidence, no objections were presented. 
 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -3-               05/05/05 
MINUTES 
 
Board inquired and Winter briefly provided information about the Neem tree and advised that all parts of 
the tree from roots to leaves to berries is used in the processing. 
 
Conley called for public input; none received. 
 
MOTION by Saunders, second by Chancey to approve the Final Site Development Plan for Organix 
South on the S 215 ft of Lot 21, Hardee County Commerce Park, zoned C/IBC (Commercial/Industrial 
Business Center) based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval, and recommended 
conditions and based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Agenda 05-20 
 
Conley advised of a request from Aaron Realty Plus, Inc. for a Special Exception to operate a child 
daycare center in existing structures on a .18MOL-acre-parcel zoned R-3 (Multiple-Family Residential) on 
or about Sally Pl., Hardee County.  
 
Board was advised that due to hospitalization, Dorothy Rivers could not be present and that the Narrative 
attached to the application provided additional information about the project. 
 
The Applicant was not present. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Special Exception and Staff 
Report for review prior to the 05/05/05 meeting. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Special Exception Staff Report including the conclusion, and recommendation for 
approval, and recommended conditions. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no 
objections were presented. 
 
Chairman called for public input; none received. 
 
MOTION by Nicholson, second by Board Member Graham to recommend approval to the Board of 
County Commissioners for the request for Special Exception to operate a child daycare center in existing 
structures on .18MOL-acre-parcel zoned R-3 (Multiple-Family Residential) based on staff’s findings, 
conclusion, recommendation for approval, and recommended conditions and based on the testimony 
received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Conley advised the BCC will receive a recommendation from the P/Z Board and hold a public hearing on 
Thursday, May 19, 2006 at 8:35 A.M., Commissioners’ Board Room, Courthouse Annex, Room 102, 412 
West Orange Street, Wauchula, Florida. 
 
 
Agenda 05-21 
 
Conley advised of a request from Elihoreph, Ltd by and through its Authorized Representative for a 
Rezone of approximately 96.07MOL acres from A-1 (Agriculture) to R-3 (Multiple-Family Residential) for 
the development of single-family dwellings in a planned unit development, on or about South Florida 
Avenue, Hardee County.   
 
Board’s Agenda advised that County Staff is presently reviewing the Preliminary Site Development Plan 
for this project that includes a clubhouse approximately 5,000 sq ft in size, one resort with a maximum of 
20 rooms; one recreation area;, one dock and 170 building lots approximately .25 to .50-acre in size. 
 
Applicant’s Authorized Representative, John Roxborough, representing Florida Reno, LLC, 5840 Stirling 
Rd., Suite 223, Hollywood, FL 33021 was present and sworn. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Rezone and Staff Report for 
review prior to the 05/05/05 meeting. 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -4-               05/05/05 
MINUTES 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Rezone Staff Report including the conclusion, and recommendation for approval. 
Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 
 
Chairman called for public input. 
 
Bobby Hanchey, 1155 St Rd 64 West, Zolfo Springs, Florida 33890 addressed the Board and was sworn. 
 
Hanchey advised he was representing himself and his brother Jimmy Hanchey, 1185 St Rd 64 West, 
Zolfo Springs, FL 33890. 
 
Hanchey pointed out that he is not opposed to growth, but wants to ensure the growth is in keeping with 
the lifestyle of Hardee County, and the growth and development is an improvement to the County. 
Hanchey expressed concern that rezoning to multiple-family zoning would allow multiple-family residential 
development in an agriculture future land use district. 
 
Board inquired and Cassidy advised that this application is for rezoning is the first step for the developer, 
to present the proposed plan for development of single-family dwellings on .25-.50-acre-lots. 
 
Board inquired and Roxborough advised with assurance that upon his meetings with the Town of Zolfo 
Springs, that potable water and sanitary facilities services will be provided by the Town of Zolfo Springs. 
 
Roxborough pointed out that: 
 the targeted market for Peace River Community and Resort is a new community for people who 
 do not live in Hardee County where residents can retreat to a tranquil living style surrounded by 
 unspoiled wilderness and nearby to urban areas and workplaces  without compromising modern 
 conveniences; 
 there will be no multi-purpose structures; this is planned to be a complimentary community 
 containing single-family/quality/upper-middle-class-homes; 
 tasteful landscaping and buffering will be installed; 
 we are 90-95% through the SWFWMD process and anticipate approval and wetlands mitigation 
 determination in two weeks; 
 Florida Reno LLC will be the developers from foundation to finish. 
 
Hanchey inquired about the 44 backyards planned along South Florida Ave. with no evidence of a 
buffer/screening or vegetative berm to prevent casual viewing into people’s backyards. 
 
Cassidy reminded the meeting that: 
 this application is for rezoning; 
 if the rezoning is approved, the developer will prepare a preliminary site development plan for 
 Hardee County Staff to review and comment; 
 developer will make required changes so the plan is in conformance with the Hardee County 
 Unified Land Development Code; 
 the P/Z Board will review the Final Site Development Plan, and make additions for buffering, 
 landscaping, screening, and the like. 
 
Roxborough distributed copies of a Business Plan Proposal for Phase I, dated May 04, 2005 (copy on 
file). 
 
Board inquired and Roxborough noted that of the 96MOL acres of land, 30 acres of wetlands and lakes 
will be maintained in their natural state. 
 
There was discussion about the possibility of rezoning to R-2 (Two-Family Residential), and Cassidy 
explained that the planned 20-room resort would not be allowed in R-2-zoned districts. 
 
Board inquired and Cassidy advised that the worst case scenario would be four units to the acre. 
 
 
 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -5-               05/05/05 
MINUTES 
 
MOTION by Chancey, second by Board Member Small to recommend approval to the Board of County 
Commissioners for the request to Rezone 96.07MOL acres from A-1 (Agriculture) to R-3 (Multiple-Family 
Residential) for the development of single-family dwellings in a planned unit development based on staff’s 
findings, conclusion and recommendation for approval, and based on the testimony received and the 
evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Conley advised the BCC will receive a recommendation from the P/Z Board and hold a public hearing on 
Thursday, May 19, 2006 at 8:35 A.M., Commissioners’ Board Room, Courthouse Annex, Room 102, 412 
West Orange Street, Wauchula, Florida. 
 
With no further business to come before the board MOTION by Nicholson, second by Chancey to adjourn 
the regular meeting at 7:10 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Next regular Planning/Zoning Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 02, 2005, 6:00 P.M. Hardee 
County Board of County Commissioners Board Room, 412 W. Orange Street, Courthouse Annex, Room 
102, Wauchula, Florida 33873. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
B.J. Haney 
B/Z Office Manager  
Acting Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
My Documents\Plan&Zon\MINUTES\050505.doc 


